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CGOVERNORZ?'S BAY

AT GOVERNOR'S BaAY.
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In gonnection with the 76th Anniversary of laying
the Foundation Stone of St. Cuthbert's Church, Governor's
Pay, & few items of personal interest have been gathered to-
gether, and are written down here in the hope that other,
and fuller detaile may be contributed, while there are etill
gome of the Pioneers amongst us who remember the carly days.
The earliest settler of whom we have record was

ﬁrtﬂ}tl_ﬂarrig, Grandfather of M¥r, Robert Harrie of Allan-

dalec., His first home was a hole dug out of the side of
the TWill, and covered with bullock skine sewn together.
The hole is etill to be seen near Mr. Sage's property.

Mr, Dyer, after whom the Pass is named, purchased
50 acres (R.5.228) near the Bay which was then called Dyers
Bay, in 1850. In 1866 he bought R.5.442, and 443 (30 and
20 acres) at the G.B, wharf. He lived with ¥r, Parsons

for five years before building his own eod house (below

Dr., Pairman's house), This he named Stoke Farm, the Maori
neme is given as Parakiraki. Hr., Dyer's HMother brought
an acorn from England and planted it there, The oak tree

ie still flourishing in Mr. Hewitt's garden, A correspon=-
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dence in the newepapers brought out the fact that this is

one of the two largest oak trees in New Zealand, the other,

of about equal size is at the Vesleyan Mission Station in
Forth Island, Mr, Dyer's house was still

g tanding when Dr. Pairmen bought the property, 29 ycares ago,

and Iy, and Mre, Pairman lived in it while their own house

was being built.
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My, Arthur Chas. Dyer gives the following detalls about

hie father Mr, John Dyer,

He arrived in New Zealand in the "Canterbury" in October,

1881, For the first #ix months he lived in & tent. He had
bought land from the Canterbury Assoecistion before leaving
England, and was alloved to chooee any land not already take-
en up. He chose Governor's Eay because there were no rivers
to croee in getting there.

lir. Dyer and Kr, Parsone were partners at ficet, and

the I'roe was named after him because he owned land at the
foot of the Pase, and people had to go through his land to
get acroge the Hill,

t firet people went by boat to Lyttelton to Church, then
Services were sterted in a small building belenging to Mr,
Potte. The Re W. V. Willock wae the Parson, and Yr. Iyer
used to lead the ginging with hie flate.

The Dyere left the Bay for a time, and Ur. Gray occupled
their house, they went back for five years, but left finally
t9¢ it was so difficult to sell their produce. If they
brought butter over to Chrictelurch they might ge«t only 44d.
1, for it, end that had to be taken out in groceries.
There is a story about the gum trees which for yeare have

been such a feature of the landscape, ag one reaches the foot
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of Tyere Pase Road, in the Valtahuna grounde. M7, Yarsons
gent to town to a well known eeedsman for a pecket of onion
secd, It wae indeed a "surprise packet" for up came gum
trees , and he planted them round his property. The two
geeds ayxe, I believe, almost indietinguieghable.

Mre, Dyer (née Gray) came out in 1860. Her brother was

a naoturalist and wrote on British scaweeds etce. One of her
anclee (Ceo. Robert Gray) wrote several books on birds, he
wos apgked to name several of the New Zealand birde - the Tul
for one, naming it Prosthemadera Novae Zeqlanclia "
mother uncle was connected with the British lfuseun,
To show the difficulties that people had boiore rosds

ere made, Mr, A. C. Dyer told of his father and uncle buy-
ing twenty heifers at £220 each, and starting to drive them

over the Hill, There was no roud at a4 1, and the cattle got

round the Hill on a narrow ledge, where there was no way to
go on, and no room to turn back, One by one they all fell oves
the precipice and were killed. This was a terrible loss to |
the owners and it took years to recover from it.

r. Dyer received injuries by being crashed between a
bulleck cart and a gate, Though he lived four ycars after

thig, he was never strong apBain.

lirg, Parsone (eister of Mr, John Dyer) wae & great Chuwi ch
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worker - she got up two bazaars for the Church - sent to

England for goode for them, and the two sales realised

£600.

yiea Wall£§, whoee grandfather, Mr, Robert Harris,

wag the earliest settler in the Bay, eaye that her
sther (nee Horris) was five years old when her people
errived from England in one of the firet four ehips.
r father gave help when the Eastern window was being
claced in the Church - he did the carpentexry work,

Ix.. Carpenter, Clork to the ¥Nt, Herbert County Council,

ig a mich-respected resident of the Bay. lie takes the
rreatest intarest in all that effects the welfare of
the place, has been Vicar's Warden for many ycars, and
ig a regular attendant at the Services. Ve much regret
hnt owing to illnegs he 1s not able to be nt the An-
niversary Celebrations.

Since Lur't'hlng the above our qooci frimc| P’l’fCarpe.nI'er has

passed (6 his resl’, on Yeb. 16" qs5 | at the Christehurch Hospifal

UGT_)( greal regret has been {:cu-l + expressed n fhe communily -

Ancrher old land mark has Fcast‘.ed aura g
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3.
Mr. Potts bought 50 scres (R,8. 1129) and .5, 1130

(30 acres) in 1858 and built a stone house, leaving a wooden
part of the original house at each end, He was a great
naturaslist, and was the suthor of the book "Out in the Openf
& series of Essaye dealing with many topice of interest in
Yew Zealand flora and fauna, On p.226 he says "lLiving
close to the beach in a sheltered nook in Port Cooper, ....
few woodland birds now frequent the slopes of our plcturesque
Hills, like many other districte, once clothed with stately
trees and brighte-leaved shrubs, Shade and shelter gone,
bare stems with whitened tops remain, and point to the work
of the ruthless bushman." It is said that Er. Potts
' eaployed six gardeners, an& gsent for seeds and plante all
over the world, also that he had as many as 4,000 different
kince of trees. He made a fernery in a gully ncar his
house, containing ferns, many of them rare, from all parts of
the wrld. An unprecedented flood caused by & cloudburset
washed the whole fermery out to sea.

Hr, Potts named his place Ohinitaki, Some of the
stone was brought from Little Quail Island, some from a
quarry on hies own land., He lived at the Bay until about
1885, and wae always to the fore in doing all he could for

Governor's Bay.
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Mr, Doddse built the first house, where My, Potts
afterwards lived., Then Mr, Thompson bought it and added
a brick room., He sold to Mr, Moorhouse, Ilater Mr. Fotts
bought 1it. Succegssive owners have been . « + ¢ + =«
My. V. Cook, Mr, H, Hall, and the present owner lixr., Fearce.

Mr, C. Parsons bought land in the Bay before he left

England, from the Canterbury Associstion. He built a
house, naming it Waitahuna, which is etill standing. He was
at the Bay at the time of one of the disastrous Bush fires,
and told the writer that the smoke was so dense that the
only place where they could breathe with any comfort, was
close to the ground - the air was clear for a few inches
from the ground.

iir, and lrs, Jemes Allan (Mr. Robert Allan's parents)
after whom Allandale wae named, were living at Diamond Hare
bour,during the time of a great fire at Governoxr's Pay, and
sald that the glare was so bright that they could sece to
read nt night by the light of the fire all those miles away.
Hre, ﬂllan-travelled to England alone when she was 70 years

old.
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5.

¥r. Cowlin, a R, N, Veteran of the Crimean Var, work-

ed for two yeare in connection with the Lyttelton Tunnel,

snd esme to Governor's Bay in 1863. He helped to build four
small bridges on the Governor's Bay road then worked for

¥r, Potts., A terrible landelip occurred, breaking Mr, Cowle
in'e house in two., His wife waes in the houseat the time, and
var carried by the force of the elide through an open door ine
to the next room., The house had to be rebuilt on a higher
site, Hr, Cowlin wag a faithful member of the Church, being
Lay Reader and Churchwarden, He passed away at the advanced
age of 93, mourned by a large circle of friends, but his

vidor iz with ue, ever 7ready to help in all good works.

Tith him were
hig Iother and an old Furse, He lived for many years where
Hre Re Allan iz now, His widow is living in Papanui, known

loved by very many, snd able to take a keen interest in

‘ecent events.

My, Beechy owned a large part of the Hill a bove the
Governor's Bay road, also land on the e¢ast of the road, he

£0ld some to Ny, Tapley.

P — — -
et Lol s WRCSAERE . s




6.
Mr. Clarkson lived on the ridge of hill by the Church.

Hie widow married iy, Bloor.

¥r., Bloor built a cob houee, which still etands behind

ire larris' house in Allandale,

iir, Trounce owned a stone house with gables, up the
Hill behind Hr. Gordon Vebster's. Some roseg snd pear trees
still mark the site of the ruine. Iy, Trounce worked for lr.

Potte,

Mr., Jenninge lived where the Willows are still growing
up tie Valley behind the Church. The house wae originally
ocouipled by the Fitton family.

ir, and drs., Msnson and Nr. La_n_d'ﬂz_*s. Cebbie came from

Wellington to Canterbury in 1843, After Mr. Hdanson had

bulilt ., Rhodes' house at Papanui, and also one for Mr.Deans
at Rlcearton, he built his own house at Teddingten. Manson's
peint (Haori name Xaitangata) running out between Allandale
and Teddington, was named after him, The Kelly gang visited
re, 'manson at Teddington, when she was alone, ©Ohe made them
velgome, supplying them with food, and they went on their way.
liry, Manson was returning from Purau and narrowly escaped fall-
ing into the hande of the gang. Another resident living near
logt his life by their hands.
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g{g,_grgig sende ue the following items about her

uncle Nr, Allen, an old resident of the Bay, who is hale and
hearty, though in hies 86th year. "lr., Allen was at a ser-
vice in a little room in My, Potte' paddock before the Church
wvas built. It was conducted by the Rev. F., Enowles of Lyttele
ton (afterwards Canon EKnowles)., At a Parish gathering a
little later, there was a prize offered for the one whe

could ride Mrs, Parsons' donkey. It was won by kr. Vallls
who hnd such long lege that he could double them underneath

the donkeyl"

During recent years the mode of travelling to the Buy

mach improved, We remember the time when the Jjourney
for people who bhad not their own conveyances, wae by train
to Tyttelton, and thence by horge coach to the Bay. It was
a roundabout way, and the time taken by the horces when walke
ing up several steep grades on the way was considerable.
From the Hotel, the lower road was taken to Allandale. There
were few houses on the upper road, but there were none on the
lower xoad, and this was a cause of dissatisfaction to the
residents, A trisl was made with motor trips to Lyttelton
about the year 1913, but it was found too costly, and the

horee coach was again revefted to. |TLater Mr, Jonees inau=~
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gurated a motor service across the Hill to Christechurch on

certain daye in the week, and about 1927 liessrs, larris &

and
nadeliffe took over the bueinees/three years sgo decided to

nake the double trip to Christchurch every day. Visitore to
the Jay, and also the recidente, are wellc atered for now.
The eivility and good nature of the drivers are beyond praise.
e menticn eepecially Mr. Tom Radcliffe, as he is the one

moet often on the road,

fome of the proprietors of the Coach were;

Hr. Small (who tried the motor trip to
Lyttelton)
r. Vhitfoxrd
Mesere. ConWLy and Webster (pfztnarz)
. Jonee, who started trips to Christe
church while lljblnuinb a
regular service to Lyttelton,

Chiefly owing to improved methode of trensit, s number
of holiday cottages have been built lately. The pioneers in

thie respect were Mr, and Mrs, Alfred HMerton who built their

cottnge in the old horse-coach days, in one of the most
besutiful siteg of the Zay, loocking right down the Harbour.
Yr, ond Ers, Herton spent all their holidays at the “ay, and
took the greatest interest in all that concermned the place.
Mr. Herton, who wvas organiet and music master at Christ's
Collepge, w ag alwaye ready to help at Services at the =2

end his help was much appreciated.
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9.
Mr, ¥m. Gray was well known in the district as he
wss not only poetmaster, but County Clerk to the Mt. Herbert
County Council for many years. His occupation wes that of
a landscape gardener, and after being in the employ of the

vemyees family in Scotland migrated to New Zealand and super=-

intended the laying out of the grounds of Nr. 1. Yottls.

tvo men contributed in collaboration a number of excellent

PAL to the Philosophical Institute, at that time a young

growing Society.

My, Gray wae an enthusiastic Botanist and leading sci-

JE. Cuth berds Governors Ra., i N\ entiete recognised him ae an suthority on native plant life.

2o Gk 38 .

He wne aleo a player of the violin and though hie hande were
horny with manual toil, hie touch was extremely seneitive.
He wog & boxn mechanic and artists whose violinc were out of
ordey snd refuced to "speak" alwaye sent them to "Gray of Cove
ernor's Bay" who inverisbly returned them in good oxder.
My, and Mrs. CGrsy were consistent Sabbateriane, Mrs,
refusing to serve teas on Sundays, ae she was in the
of doing during the week.
iy, Gray once lived in a house on Dyer's Pase Old Road.
Miterwarde they lived at the corner opposite ¥Mr, Sage's pro-
rty, where they had the Poct Office for some ycars. They
baked bread which they esold to neighbours. A fine
blaek beceeh tree still grows there, planted by lr. Gray.

Tater they lived in the house lir, Dyer built and then they




i0.
bullt the house now owned by Mr, Gellety, their son-ine-law,
and the Post Cffice was moved therxe, A splendid Fiksu palm
and eny fine ghrube are in that gorden, and are reminders of

the love that iy, and ¥re, Cray had for their garden.

dr, Sam., Hall built a stone house on the Lytlelton Road,

neer the junction of Dyer's Pass Road, which ie #{ill standing.
drs. Small Senr, telle an amusing story of being sent to

tuy a sugar=bag of bread from Mrs. Gray, and on the way back

to ¥ Hodgeon, with whom she lived, a friend persuaded her to

co in for a cup of tea, and tae bag of bread mas ioft under

& tree, The visit was enjoyable, and lenthened ocut till it

wee Gnrke On golng for the bag of bread, it was found that

the pigs and turkeys had eaten the whole of the week's supply!

Ho doubt it was a eadder and a wieser girl wio arrived home

with the =mply bag!

Mr, Archibald Small was & well known pioncer, who pasee=

ed avway regently, His daughter, lrs. Grﬁg gtill lives in the
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iir, and Mrs. Oram built the house now owned by Mr. ¥,

pleys 1t wae made of sod inside and wood oatside.

Hre, Grosvenor Miles was one of the first, if not the
rganist, playing for the Services in Rev. 5. A. Lingard's
Her daughter, Mre. Samael, was born in the Iay, and now
livee in Fendalton, She was & couein of the Totte family
an¢d renembere being with them on the beach when & tidal wave
ocourred in Lyttelton Harbour. The water left the larbour o
1 three vessels in the Harbour were left iying an their

in the mud. Hr. Potts and others were watching and the

ve wanted to walk acwoes to vwuail Island, bat ¥r, Potts warne

cd them of danger from returning water, and would not let them
The water came back in a great wave, washing fish up and

wing them over the pacdocks at Allandale.
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“rs, Constable is an old resident of the Pay, who came

out in the sailing ship "Taranaki® in 1883, Bhe became house=
keeper to the Rev, E. watts, the Vicar at the Bay, who had
recently come from India. Later she moved to Allandale, and
narried ¥r, Constable, a descendant of the famoue artist of
that name,. iire., Constable telles of the wedding of Mise Edith {
‘ot te to the Rev, R, ¥, CGarbett, how the Church wae beautifully l
decornted with white camelins and masidenehair fern from the

famoue fernery in Iy, Potta' garden, The Chureh was sufely

locked up efter the decorating wae dome, and next arning the

bridecroom walked from the Hotel to the Church im rood time 1

fer the wedding, but alas! the key of the Chureh wag nowhere '

to te found! Searchers were dispatched, but vith no result.
‘'t ieng last the brothere of the bride managed to force the

docy open wvith s poker and the vedding procecded,

Ure K. Radcliffe come from Peel, Isle of Man, over 60

Joare ngo, and wag at Port Leyy until he settled in Allan-

¢y nbout 40 ycars ago.

He has a wonderful orchard, with

~lo=¢ate appliances for epraying <te,

ir, Harrie ie sleo a well-known resident of Allandale,

living in a =tone houce, At the back of their house is a clay

dcuse built by lr. Bloor, etill in a fair state of preservation.
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Mr, Cockayne Edward§ a friend of My, Potte, llved
oppoeite the Church where a track now leads down to the

eache There are still walnmut trees there and other trees
which he planted. He had had an sdventurous iife on the

eet Coast.gold digginge.

In a gspeech delivered at a welcome Home “Coclal to
rooper %lfred Spnll, on 3Cth May, 1902, Mr, Edwards eaid
"when T first came to Governor's Bay the Empire was in the
throeg of the dreadful Indian Mutiny - the Bengal Tiger at the
thront of the Britieh Lion.," Concluding a speech full of pa-
triotic sentiment he said - "My advice to all in this roocm and

in the whole Fmpire ie to be true to your King and Country,

keep your powder dry." When Mr. Edwgrde was gettiqunfﬁ

in yeare, Hr., Cowlin built him a little house close to hiw own,

that he and Mrs. Cowlin might look after him, That house is

now eccupied by HMr, and Mrs. Carpenter,

My, and Mrs, Bramley and family lived in the Allan's

houge before My, and Jys, James Allan lived there,
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Ur, ond Nrs, Pairman settled in the Bay in 1907, oce

cupying “r. Dyer's old house while their own was being built.
They named this house 'Moat Ynowe' after the old village
oot Till common among the Dlruids.

At the close of the War, Dr, Pairman formed an Associe

ation for boyes who had left school, for the study of Science

ond languages, called "The Soys' Athenacuz". A number of
n now holding responsible positions look back with gratie
to the time spent under these conditions. Dy, Pairman
secr® to have a speecial gift, not only for imparting knowe
ledge, btut for encouraging others iw original regcarch, Ve
have seen a letter from the famous Dr, L, Cockayne in which
1e eredits Dr, Palrman with suggesting to him oripginal boe
tanical research, and for a number of yeare eymputh tically

neouraging him inlhia work,
We quote a few linee from some verees wryitten by Dr.

alrman in connection vith the Athenaeum:e




"Remember %0 the last
'Tir always worth your while to view the paet!
For in a country decked with leafy bowers,
an first appeared surrocunded by the flowers
Yedl Oince that time, where'er his feet have trod,
"lowers have been born to mark the pllgrim'e road,
‘nd all along the stressed and troubled years,
Faith's trueting heart hath charmed away hie fears.
This world indecd is beautiful and fair,
Tet each his garden tend with willing care,
So when the harvest comes to garner sced,
There may not be within, ome noxious weedl"

Mrs, Pairman in 1919 called a mecting of the Vomen eof
trict, for the purpose of forming a Club to study sube
te interesting to women. She was electesd Iresident annuale

oy ten ycars. The motto of the Club was "Fyreedom to

", and it did a lot of ueeful wrk in its time., The
P « K

icetings were held for a time in Mrs, Pairman's house, but
luter the Doctor had & halli built, Prequent entertainments
vere given to the Public, which were greatly hicliped by the
orchigstra formed by the Boye' Athenaeum, A monthly service
continues to be held in thie Hall,

Lecently Dr., Pairman presented a site on vhich to
build a Librery, and advanced & loan at a nominal interest

tc carry on the scheme. Thne loan is now fully paid up.
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Present owners (or occuplers) of houses in Gove

:_.-.'j,y |

om the North)

Grieg
Tom Small
iikins
'« Small
row
'ne Lredale
¥r. Compton
Hee lHedfern
lirgs Fatén
r. Vatchett
‘e SNitieTBON

re Lanigester

Tapley
Yheeler
Paynard

¥r, isrtridge

lr. Cellety

iire Firmeton
Yrse Constable
Hro, Tapley
Cholmondely lome
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sarsons
liixen
Carpenter
Cowlin
erton
« Ring

tewart

lirown

Hall

T

¢l (Wige Neale)

Jalirman

sngn arr

lr. Cholmondeley

ies Tewls
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farris
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ST, CUTHBERT'S, GOVERNOR'S BAY,

he 75th Anniversgary Celebrations took place on February

935, (instead of January 30th). The day was gloriously

with light easterly wind blowing, The cuancel of the
been decorated with flowers, chiefly from the gardens
arpenter, Miss Wheeler, MissAllan and Mrg. Cowlin; red,
ink lilies predominating.
ongregation of over one hundred filled every available
ven of the Clergy were present - Rev., C. W, I, Maclav~
icar; Archdeacon Petrie, who read the lessons; Rev, 0.
who preached; Rev® ¥, G, Brittan, D. Rankin, P, H,
and G. B. Nanson, The Preacher took for his text the
iember the days of old." He said the story of many
ike the story of characters we remember in our school-
We are all making history. Our deeds and actions may
recorded in books for others to read, but they affect and
1enice the lives of others. . . . . Truly it has been said
living past does not die.”
[isg Theeler was Organist and the singing was led by lirs.

‘arr, and some members of St. Saviour's Choir, West




Iyttelton, who wore their gowns and mortar boards.

\fter Serviece a luncheon, provided by the Ladies' Guild,
was riven in the Allandale Hall, The Vicar presided and wele
comed those present, among whom were some representing the old

families = Mrs, J, Grefell, formerly Miss Decima Dutton (the

firet child christened in the Church); A Mrs. Cowlin, Messrs. Thos.

v, 4, Firmston, W. A. Gray, R. Gebbie, A. Bloor, R. Orton
dley, A. C. Dyer, R. Allan, R, Harris and ¥m., Harris, Mesdames.
igson and Constable.

After the luncheon a social afternoon was spent, aftcernoon
-rved the children ran races, and gave much amusement
of war", and so ended a very happy function.
A1l praise should be given to those who arranged the Cele-
&, espeeially to Mrs., J. Griffen, who acted as Seeretary
worked indefatigably for months taking double work upon
shoulders when Mr. Carpenter was laid aside; alsc to lrs,
ton, who arranged all the details of the luncheon, and gave
deal of thought and work. The charming young girls who
nt table were supervised by Mre, Manhire and did their
most caopably. The luncheon itself was "like a Vedding
ne someone said. Members of the CGuild worked together to

whole thing a success, sparing no time or trouble.

B s e T




e Vestry arranged transport for the visitors and did

"hard work jobs.™ Speeches were made by the

and the Revd. F. G, Brittan, Mr, R. Allan, Churchwarden,

s. Allen, whose memory carried him back toc the days
the Chureh was built.
le will long remember this day for its happy spirit

and the re-union of old friends.
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Governor's Bay.

The name is probably connected with Governor
Sir George Grey. He and Lady Grey spent a few
days with Mr and Mrs Deans at Riccarton in 1849,
and he was at Lyttelton to weleome the Colonists
on their arrival on December 16th, 1850. As his ves-
sel was lying at anchor farther up the harbour to-
wards the Bay. the place no doubt took its name
from that eirecumstance.

Before the first four ships arrived there were
settlers at the head of the Bay (Teddington)—NMessrs

Lyttelton were easier of access than those lying he-
yond the Port Hills.

The Bav must have heen very heautiful at that
time, with native bush in all the gullies. Giant trees
were there, as ean be seen from the one bare trunk
which still shows out against the hillside, above the
Bay.

Years before, it had been a Maori settlement,
We read thatOhinetahi Pa, defended with a palisade

Lyttelton Heads, looking from Governor’s Bay.

Manson and Gebbie, having settled there some ‘'years
carlier. Mr Hodeson, who arrvived in Lyttelton in
Aungust, 1851, took up land at the -end of the Bay
(now Allandale), and there were a few other settlers
in that part,

Governor's-Bay had, relatively, more importance
hefore the Lyttelton tunnel was made, than it has
now. Places that could be reached by water from

of split tree trunks, and with diteh and parapet,
stood there. After the place had been eaptured from
the Negati Mamoe by Te Rangi-Whakaputa, his son,
Manuwhiri, oceupied it with a party of Ngai Tahu.
This chief, Manuwhiri, had many sons, but only one
daughter, and he named the Pa after his solitary
daughter: ““Ohinetahi’” (‘““The place of the one
daughter’’). This name was adopted by the late
Mr T. H. Potts for his stone house at Governor’s Bay.

Governor’s Bay, 1871.

There is little history of the early days at the
Bay available. Settlers were too busy working to
get their farms in order, their houses built, and
their land fenced, to do much writing. We find that
a bridle track was finished as far as Dyer’s Bay
(that part of Governor's Bay north of the wharf)
by December, 1856. During that year £180 were
spent on the road from Lyttelton to Rapaki. Total
on whole road to Gebbie’s Flat by June, 1864 was
£2,865. A great deal of the work was prison labour,
and many contracts were paid for in land.

The sum of £100 was voted for a jetty in 1859,
and £100 were spent during 1862,

Before there was a post office, Peter Fox was the
mailman from Lyttelton te Gebbie’s Valley. He
came on horseback, twice a week, delivering mails
into letter boxes and collecting letters on the return

journey. He was also a cattle drover on the way
hack.

The Governor’s Bay Post Office, formerly known
as Ohinetahi, was opened in 1867, the name being
changed in 1884.

The school was opened in 1868,

There was a blacksmith living opposite to the
Church where he had a smithy.

There were three hotels in the Bay at one time,
one, the old part of the present hotel, one at the foot
ol Dyer’s Pass, called the Traveller’s Rest, and one
on My, Tapley’s land near the beach—this was
burned down and never rebuilt.

Names of some of the old seftlers in and near
Governor’s Bay: Manson, Gebbie, Dyer. Parsons,
Gray, Beechy, Dodds, Thompson, Moorhouse, Potts,
Hodeson, Vigers, Hall, Allan. Small, Oram, Cowlin,
Tapley, Clarkson, Bloor, Ashton, Trounce, Jennings,
Fitton, Bamford, Pope, Miles, Calvert, MeMaines,
MeCreedy, Wallis.

Mr Potts

Photo kindly supplied by Mrs Garlick

Viearage (Rev, B. W, Harvey)
+ Trounce

Mr Wallis

Blacksmith’s Shop
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Cholmondeley Memorial Home

Of outstanding events in recent years we must

mention the opening of the Cholmondeley Memorial

Home For eonvalescent children. The land, and the

total cost of this splendid building

rendered to the Home by Mrs. Wagstaff, seeretary
and treasurer sinee it was built. No words can give
any adequate idea of what the Home owes to her

whole-hearted support and enthusiasm.

were the gift of Mr. H. Heber Chol-
mondeley, in memory of his wife.
When built, it was handed over to the
Committee of the Children’s Convales-
cent Cottage. then at New Brighton.
This building was sold, and the child-
ren transferred to Governor’s Day.
The Home has been of the greatest
benelit to many children who needed
change of air, and to be nursed baek
to health. The present Matron, Mris.
Bishop, cares for them most lovingly.
and indeed each member of the staff,
ever sinee the Home was opened, has
viven wonderful help. Special men-

tion must be made of the great serviee

A view of Governor's Bay, showing Cholmondeley Home,

o AT o il

THE CHURCH

We find from early records that Services were
held at the Bay as early as 1852, for the first bap-
tism was that of William Samuel Manson, born on
January 2, 1852. baptized April 18, 1852, by the Rev.
W. W. Willoeck., The first marriage was that of
Reginald Orton Bradley (cousin of the present Mr.
0. Bradley), to Jennie Manson, on December 21st,
1865, by the Rev. R. R. Bradley.

The first burial was Robert Munro, March 16,
1867.

In 1869 a burial took place which is worth re-
cording. 1t was that of Mary Crompton, of Little
River. The body was carried .on foot hy eight men
from Little River, a distance of 40 miles. in order
that it might be buried in a real cemetery. The in-
seription has disappeared, but the wooden head-
stone is otherwise well preserved. We honour the
men of those days who went through so much that
the bedy of one whom they loved should rest in the
beautiful little cemetery attached to the Chureh.

By the end of 1854, Parish by-laws had bheen
fraimed and adopted, and the Pavishes formed were:
Lyttelton, Governor's Bay, Akaroa, Kaiapoi and
Christehureh,

In Becember, 1855, the Chureh Property Trustees,
with the eonsent of the Bishop Designate (Rev Thos.
Jackson), subdivided some of the Parishes as fol-
lows:

Lyttelton, into Liyttelton and Sumner.

(‘hristehureh, into Christehureh, Papanui, Ricear-

ton, Lower Heathcote (Christehurch Quay),
Upper Heatheote (now Halswell), Middle

Heatheote being part of the Christchureh
Parish,

Clergymen in charge of the above Parishes were :

Lyttelton, Rev. B. W. Dudley.

Sumner, Rev. G. Cotterill.

Governor’s Bay (with Upper Heatheote), Rev.

W. W. Willoek.

Papanui and Avonside, Rev. (. Mackie.

Christehureh (with Riecarton and Middle Heath-

cote), Archdeacon Mathias.

Lower Heatheote, Rev. Jas. Wilson.

Akaroa, Rev. W. Aylmer,

Kaiapoi, Rev. J. Raven.

In 1859. a re-arrangement of Parochial Distriets
took place—the Parish of Riecarton was combined
with tlalswell, and the Ineumbent (Rev. (', Bowen)
Lad his hands full ininistering to the three places.

An item ol ‘interest in connection with the work
at that time comes from one who was a small girl
in those days. The Rev. €. Bowen took the monthly
services at the Bay, stayed a night or two and jour-
neyed on to Little River. He gave the little girl
(now Mrs. Lawrence, Sur, of Fendalton, nee Vigers)
a Psalni to learn to say to him on his next visit. In
this'way she learned the whole of the Psalter,

Up till 1860, services were held in a small sod
building below the house - where Mr. Griffen now
lives. The residents were not satisfied with this
building and through Mr W. S. Moorhouse, the Pro-
vineial Clouneil gave an allotment of five acres for
Chureh and Glebe at Fernbrook, up the hill behind
the present site of the Church. Mr. Potts and others
thought that site too far from the road. so he ex-
changed it for five aeres of his own land. where the
Chureh now stands.

l—Interior
2—TPoreh

3 & 4—Church and
Burial Ground

5—BEast Window




T.:H.. POTTS, M:H-R., 1886

Mr. Potts was chiefly instrumental in arranging
for the building of the Chureh, giving liberally :1‘1|(l
helping in every way in his power. DBut mention
st be made of the help given by many Scotsmen
and their families. They

There was no hurried jerry-building about this
Church. Two years it took to build. Some of the
stone was brought from the beach, some from Gar-
lick’s quarry, drawn, no doubt, by bullocks. The
architect was Mr. Mallinson, the builder of the stone
part was Mr. Morey, who had built the Lyttelton
Church. Mr. Firmston did the woodwork., Many
difficulties had to be faced. The turret and ftwo
gables gave way owing to wet weather and strong
wind. Buttresses had to be added at the east vm{
as well as at the north and south, because the l'pol
caught the winds so muech, making the hu_ildln;:
shake. This was before the chaneel was built, as
will be seen in the photograph taken about 1871.

There is no record available of the opening day,
but it must have been a real joy to those who had
worked so hard, and had given unsparingly of their
time and money when they saw their beautiful little
Chureh an acecomplished faet. The first roof was of
shingles, more picturesque than the present corru-
gated iron one. The thick walls with the deeply in-
set windows add to the charm, and the poreh, \\'l!h
its cobblestone floor reminds one of an English vil-
lage chureh.

Lying as it does on the slope of the green hill,
with the blue water of the harbour showing through
a gap in the hills, one thinks of the words, ‘‘As the
mountains are round ‘about Jerusalem, so the l,«o‘rd
is round about His people from heneeforth even for
ever,"”’ :

There was still a elerical service only once a
month, but all honour must he given to the I_Ja'_v
Readers, who so faithfully carried out their duties,
and took all other services.

realised the duty of giving
freely to any Church with
which they were for the time
conneeted, and their help was
ereatly welcomed.

It must have been a great
day for the small community
when the foundation stone was
laid on January 30, 1860. The
Archdeacon of Akaroa (Arch-
deacon Mathias) was there,
Rev. Francis Knowles, Rev.
(‘roasdaile Bowen, Mr Thos
Potts and others. Morning
Serviee was held in the tem-
porary Church, th:_~|| the (‘|t‘l:g.{'_\'
and others went 1n procession
to the new site.

A View of the Church, 1875.
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In 1866, the Rev. C. Bowen was granted leave of
absence to go to England for a year. It was evi-
dently at this time that it was found necessary to
have a resident viear in charge of Governor’s Bay,
as the Rev. E. A. Lingard was appointed in 1866.
The boundaries of this Parochial Distriet ineluded
Rapaki, Purau, Motukarara and Little River. about
35 miles in width, necessitating a good deal of tra-
velling.,

Rev. E. A, Lingard, First Resident Viear.

Following Rev. . A. Lingard, the Viears or Cu-
rates in charge of the Parish were (the dates given
are the dates of their appointment) :

July 1, 1867—Rev. H. Torlesse.

January 26, 1870—Rev. B. W. Harvey.

September 23, 1872 —Rev. 1. E. East.

August 15, 1875—Rev. E. R. Otway,

September 22, 1879—Rev. K. H. Wyatt.

Dvcmnhsrr 19, 1881—Rev. R. F. Garbett,

February 5, 1884—Rev. E. Watts.

July 1, 1884 —Rev. W. F. Knowles.

February 6, 1891 —Rev. P. J. Cocks.

—1892—Rev, J. Sheldon.

Deeember 15, 1899-Rey. P. N. Pritehott.

June 9, 1909—Rev. O, Fitzeerald.

June 1, 1910—Rev. G. W. Christian.

- ‘:‘r"‘ff'.

September 1, 1913—Rev. H, Purchas.
December 10, 1918—Rev. W. 1I. Stych.
November 29, 1920—Rev. G. B. Nanson.
February 14, 1924—Rev. E. H. Shore.
—1928—Attached to Liyttelton, under Rev. T,
M. Curnow,
May 7, 1930—Rev. . W. I. Maclaverty.

The “Church News'' of July, 1875, contains the
following notice:

““The Parish Church and Burial Ground of Go-
vernor’s Bay were conseerated on Sunday, 22nd
June, 1875, by the Most Rev. the Primate (Bishop
Harper) . ... The congregation was a large one, and
the Services, which were plain, were heartily taken
part in by those present. A stone chancel, 14ft. by
111t. has just been added to the Church, thereby
greatly improving the building within and without.
By this addition the Church has been so enlarged
as to admit of 40 more sittings. The cost of the
work was £210. The Church was dedicated under
the name of St. Cuthbert.”

The east window is in memory of Rachel Brander
Lloyd, only “daughter of Thomas and Mary Ann
Potts, born 1826, died at Leamington Priors, 1860.

As it is a most unusual thing to see in a stained
glass window a Saint carrying 4 man’s head. ah ex-
planation may be found of interest (see last page).

Two other stained glass windows were erected
in 1907, in memory of Decima Hall and Rachel Cow-
lin.

The Re-table and two brass vases were given in
memory of Thomas Hall, in May, 1900,

The Altar of brass candlesticks were given in
memory of Rev. R. R. Bradley and his wife, in De-
cember, 1900,

The Communion Sefvice now in use is one of
three that were sent out in the first ships to Can-
terbury. One was presented to Lyttelton., one to
Governor’s Bay, and the third one (it is thought) to
Halkett.

The Belfry was built during the Ineumbeney of
the Rev. P. H. Pritchett, who was mainly instru-
mental in its erection. It was intended only as a
temporary strueture, and later there was a scheme
for building a stone bell-tower with vestry room
underneath, as a memorial to the late Mr. T. II.
Potts. Some money was subseribed, and a good deal
more promised, when the war commenced. Tt was
considered an inopportune time to continue the mat-
ter, so the amounts paid were invested, and the
whole scheme left in abeyance.




The work of caring for the building and the
churchyard has been mainly voluntary. ‘*Working
bees’’ have heen held from time to time, when the
orass is cut, the fences trimmed, and much done to
]iwp things in order. Amongst other workers, Mr.
Gray, Chureh Warden for some years, worked to a
oreat extent in the cemetery ground, ;'llmllilE;{ the
vare Japanese firs and other shrubs and helping to
keep the grounds tidy. Y

About 1900, the Church and Vicarage needed a

good deal of repairing. The Vicar at the time, Rev.
P, H. Pritchett, and others, did a lot of work in put-
ting things in order. The old shingle roof was re-
placed with iron, walls were treated to preyent rain
vetting in, a copper cross was made for the east
oable of the Church, heavily gilded that it might
show from afar: Unfortunately, it has since’ been
painted. The pieturesque Vicarage was also put in

order, and the many ““leaks’ stopped.

.,

Roev. H. Torlesse, Rev, H, E. East,
Rov, Knowles, Rev, P, ..

kev. H. Purchas, Rev, W. H. Stye

Rev. E.
Cocks, Rev. P. H.
h,

II. Otway, Rev. R. F. Garbutt.
Pritehett, Rev. G. W. Christian.
Rev, G. B, Nanson.

THE

VICARAGE

ents to the services of God.
of some of them are.—

Mrs. Grosvenor Miles,
Miss Potts.

Mrs, Chudleigh,

Miss Hunt.

Mrs. Walter Lone.
Mrs. Pairman.

Mrs. Pritehett,

Miss Ismene Christian,
Mrs. H. Purchas.

Mrs. Styeh.

Mrs. Jones.

Miss Wheeler (present organist).

CHURCHWARDENS AND VESTRY.

_Mr. W Carpenter (Vicar’s Warden) has held
1}_1|:-; position for many years, being most faithful in
his duties, and interested in all that concerns the
Church,

Mr. R. Allan, as People’s Warden, also does a
very useful work. He and his family have dlways
been keen supporters of the Chureh. .

Members of the present Vestry are: Messrs €. .
Radeliffe, A. E. Radeliffe, H. Hall, H. Banks. F.
Pearee, 1. Small, J. Griffen.

Amongst Chureh workers in the past
and present we must mention the organ-
ists who gave of their time and their tal-
The names

MR. W. A, CARPENTER
Bishop’s Warden

REV. €.
Vicar

1Tty

MACLAVERTY MR. R. ALLAN

Peoples” Warden
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The Ladies’ Guild.

A very live body of workers is the Ladies’ Guild,
started by Mrs Curnow, when the distriet was at-

LADIES' GUILD

tached to West Lyttelton. Monthly meetings are
held, and an Annual Garden Party. lately enlarged
into a Flower Show,

The Guild has provided many needs of the
(hurch and has given generous help elsewhere.

LADIES' GUILD WITH SISTER NORTH

MRS. CHUDLEIGH (nee Potts)

MR, & MRS

COWILIN

GOVERNORS BAY,

TV i L N S

1934,
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BENEFACTIONS.

The Chureh has henefitted considerably through
a leghey under the will of the late Mrs, Mabel Chud-
leight (nee Potts), in which she begueathed £1000
to be invested for the use of the Chureh.

Also the late Mr. William Cowlin left 23 acres of
land as an endowment. This land is situated up the
hill, behind his own home.

(1ifts like these show the keen interest taken in
the Chureh by some of the residents who realised
what a help it is to future chureh officers to have
some of the financial burden lightened.

The compiler of this booklet realises an inability
to record the history of the past adeguately, owing
to lack of information. If names have been omitted
that should have been mentioned, we erave forgive-
ness.  All through the 756 years since the foundation
stone was laid there have been those who have
striven to live unselfishly, to help God’s work, to
make beautiful the place of His sanctuary. Their
work is not forgotten by Him who marks the fall of
a sparrow and glories in the beauty of the lillies.

The thanks of the congregation are due to Miss
Wheeler, who for many years has not only played
the organ (no light task in its state of hroken bel-
lows!), but has led the singing most eapably.

SUNDAY SCHOOL—TEACHERS AND CHILDREN

ST. CUTHBERT.

The Patron Saint of our Chureh and the subjeet
of the east window is St. Cuthbert, who was born
about 635 A.D., and died in 687. His life was spent
in good works, actively travelling the country
bringing Christianity into the remote hamlets of
Northumbria. He was eleeted Prior of his monas-
tery at Old Melrose in 661, and later reluetantly
consented to be Bishop of Hexham, but after two
vears he retired to an island ¢ orthumbria, where
he died.  In the 9th century the monks of Lindis-
farne were foreed fo leave their island home by the
Danes, and they laid the head of St. Oswald in the
coffin of their patron, St. Cuthbert, and after many

TURNERS LTD., Printers and Publishers,

wanderings they reached Durham. In 1104, and
again in the last century the tomb of St. Cuthbert
s opened, and the head of St. Oswald was seen
resting in St, Cuthbert’s arms.
St. Oswald was the saintly King of Northumbria
who died in battle with the ¢hampion of heathenism,
and was greatly reverenced in the North of England,

THANKS.

The Vestry tender grateful thanks to Mrs, F. R.
Inwood for her valuable work towards the com-
pilation of this booklet.

enr. Tuam and Colombe Streets, Christehurch,
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